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Located on the summit of one of Lynchburg's numerous hills, the
Lynchburg Court House occupies a prominent position overlooking the steeply

descending steps of Monument Terrace.  Executed in stucce-over-brick on a
granite ashlar bascment, this fine example of the Greck Revival style is
capped by a shallow dome located over the intersection of the ridges, At

the top of the dome, is a small open belfry consisting of a circle of small
Ionic columns supporting a hemispherical dome.

Set on a granite ashlar podium the fromt of the court house
displays a three-bay Doric portico which is echoed by an engaged portico with
pilasters on each side and on the rear. The design of the portico includes
a triglyph, irieze surmounted by a pediment with ends that termimate in pro-
jecting boars heads. The pediment contains an historic clock whose weights
were ingeniously installed to descend within the drums of the portico's two
inside columns. The ¢lock was shipped from Boston in 1833 and for sixteen
years had been used in the first church building of Saint Paul's Episcopal
Church in Lynchburg. Although the timepiece was rather weather-beaten afteL
five years of exposure on a hillside near the church, the clock was installed
on the new court house and has now worked for over ome hundred years. The
hour 1is struck by a brass bell cast in 1825 by John W. Bank of Philadelphiad
The center bay of the porch is widened, making the ¢rossette architrawve aand
the three-panelled double door entrance clearly visible. Under the portico
on the second fleror, a three-unit central bay consisting of a four-over-four
sash window is flanked by two recessed panels. This central window is
further bound by two six-over-six sash windows.

The sides of the building are evenly divided into five bays by
pilasters which rest on the ashlar foundation. In the center of each side E
wall the three-bay pedimented engaged portico projects slightly from the
wall's surface and, like the front portico, features a three-part central
window which hangs above an entrance elaborated with a crossette architrave.
A double flight of stairs leads up to the landing in front of each entrance,
The two stories of six-over-six sash windows along the sides and back are
set into & single vertical recess divided by a molded panel.

A one-bay pentagonal addition with a flat roof is attached to the
three-bay rear of the building. Suspended at the same level as the stone -
belt course of the main mass, the projecting course of the addition divides
the full-basement from the first floor level, To the rear a segmental
headed door gives access to the lower floor and a segmental headed window
lights the second floor. Except for this addition the exterior remains |
essentially in its original form.

The regularity and simplicity of the exterior tends to hide the
complexity of the building's interior plan. A transverse hall connecting
the two side doors of the building serves as the public entranceway. Trom
the rear corners of this hallway two exceptionally imposing stairs with
massive walnut handrails\iurve in lanquid spirals to the hall on the second

floor. _
The old court Foom originally occupied the entire front portion
of the building's first floor but the symmetry of this space has been altered

by the addition of three offices along the west side which now occupy a third

of the area. In the center of the court room's aisle are found four
elongated cast iron Corinthian columns which rise to the ceiling providing
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bounds of the columns, a large ceiling rosette gives the decorative effect of
a canbpy. The jury stand or bench is recessed inteo the room's back wall
where two small deoors at either end provide entrance from the hall. In front
of the four Ionic columns which flank the jurors stand, the mecre recent
addiction, of a straight stair with a turned balustrade leads down to the base-
ment where the prisoners were kept to await trial. On the opposite side of
the main hall, a central corridor bound by two rooms on each side leads to the
rear of the building. Some of the interior architraves in the offices echo
the crossette motif. Many of the offices maintain their original fireplace
openings.

The plan of the second floor is similar to the reverse of the
first flror arrangement. A central hall which leads to the front from the
lateral landing is flanked by offices on both sides. To the rear a door with|
paneled reveals leads to the second floor court room which is lighted by floor;
length windows.

| This court room was remodelled in the early twentieth century .
and features 'bands of interesting early twentieth century wall covering, The
heavy paper is embossed with designs of garlands, fleur-de-lys, torches,
palmettes and rosettes. 5
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The Lynchburg Court House stands as an outstanding example of Greeﬁ
Revival public architecture. Built in 1855, it is the second court house |
building to occupy the summit of what was known in the nineteenth century aé
Court House Hill. In 1853 the Chancery and Law Order Book cites that the i
building committee appointed by the Common Council "entered into contract |
with Andrew Ellison, Jr.,.(to build) a new Court House.'" Little is known l
of this talented architect who in the execution of the building's design {
took full advantage of the remarkable site above the town's James River L
port and used the natural pedestal to emphasize the strong lines of the l
Greek Revival form. Constructed during an era when architectural symbolism
was of primary importance, this exceptional interpretation of the Greek
Revival style quickly became a landmark for the town of Lynchburg.

Lynchburg's first courthouse was completed only eight years after
the town's incorporation in 1805, on land which was given by John Lynch for
this specific local necessity. Lynch, who had helped to found the town in
1786, recognized the need for a court house in order to affirm the legality
of the town's proceedings. Upon completion of the original two story brick
court}structure, the area was officially annexed by the town.

| At the beginning of the second half of the century, Lynchburg
experienced a period of increased economic and industrial development. The
growth! of the town is proven by town records which show that it had been ‘
augmented by six anmexations, and that the town's area had actually @
quadrupled in size. In 1851 a public referendum was held to decide on the
question of building a new courthouse, one more capable of accomodating the
needs of the enlarged city. Two years later a building committee was
appointed and Ellison was chosen to design the new structure on the site of
the old court house. By 1855 the work was completed by the firm of Hallet
and Mace for a total of $22,000.

The Court House was one of the first buildings in Lynchburg to be
illuminated by modern lighting methods. In 1876 gas lights were installed
over the front door and eight years later the building became the city
pioneer in the use of electric lights.

In 1892 the old path which zigzagged iip to the Court House was
replaced by steps and in 1924 the Lynchburg firm of Hurd and Chesterman
designed the grand stair of Monument Terrace. These granite steps flanked
by a cast stone railing were installed over a period of two years by the
construction company of D, F. Burnette. Dominated by a Confederat Monu-
ment and forming a backdrop for Charles W. Keck's Dough Boy statue at its :
base, the staircase serves as a local war memorial. As a visually integraﬁ

unit. Monument Terrace apd the Couri House combine to form one of {he most
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A third courthouse was built in 1955 by Lynchburg architect

J. Everctte Fauber, Jr., to provide additional working space and the 0ld
Court House now houses the Juvenile and Domestic Courts.
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U.S.G.5. 7%' quadrangle (scale:?:24000)
Lynchburg, Va. 1963
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